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09SEPI6 PM 1:06' 

HEARIHGS CLERK 
EPA --REGIOH 10 

) 
In the Matter of: ) DOCKET NO. CWA-I O·2009·0 197 

) 
) 

STERLfNG MfNTNG COMPANY ) CONSENT AGREEMENT AND 
) FINAL ORDER 

nea r Kellogg, Idaho ) 
) 

Respondent ) 
----------~--------

I. STATUTORY AUTHORITY 

1. 1. This Consent Agreement and Final Order ("CAFO") is issued under the authority 

vested in the Administrator of the United States Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA'') by 

Seclion 309(g)(2)(B) o f the Clean Water Act ("CWA"), 33 U.S.C. § 13 19(9)(2)(B). 

1.2. The Adm inistrator has delegated the authority to issue the Final Order contained 

in Part Vof th is CAFO to the Regional Administrator of EPA Region 10, who in tum has 

redelegated th is authority to the Regional Judicial Officer. 

1.3. Pursuant to Sections 309(g)( I) and 309(g)(2)(B) of the CWA , 33 U.S.C. 

§§ 1319(g)( I) and 13 1 9(g)(2)(8), and in accordance with th e "Consolidated Rules of Practice 

Goveming the Administrative Assessment of Civi l Penalties," 40 C.F.R. Part 22, EPA hereby 

issues, and Sterling Min ing Company (hereinafter referred to as "Respondent") hereby agrees to 

issuance of, !he Final Order contained in Part V of!his CAFO. 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER - J U.S. Environmenlill Protect ion Agenc:y 
DOCKET NO. CWA-I O·2009-0197 1200 Sinh Avenul.! , Suite 900 
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(206) 553-1037 



5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

2 

3 

4 

6 

7 

8 

9 

J I 

12 

13 

14 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

22 

23 

24 

. , 
11. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

2.1. In accordance wilh 40 C.F.R. §§ 22. I 3(b) and 22.45(b), issuance of .his CAFO 

constitutes commencement of this proceed ing. which will conclude when the Final Order 

contained in Part V of this CAFO becomes effective. 

2 .2 . Part 111 of this CAFO contains a concise statement of the statutory and fac tual 

basis for the alleged violations of the CWA. 

III. ALLEGAnONS 

3.1. Sec. ion 301(.) of the CWA. 33 U.S.C. § 13 11 (a). prohibi.S1he discharge of 

po llutants into waters of the Un ited States by any person, except as 3uthori'led by a Nal iona l 

Pollutant Discharge Elimination System C''NPDES'') penn it issued pursuant to Section 402 ofth .. 
CWA, 3) U.S.C. § 1342. Each discharge of poll utants from a point source that is not authorized 

by such a pennitconslitutes a violation ofSeetLon 301(a) of the CWA. 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a). 

3.2. See.ion 502(12) oflhe CWA, 33 U.S .C. § 1362(12). defines "discharge ofa 

po~lutant" to include "any addition of any pollutant to navigable waters from any point source," 

Swion 502(7) of ,he CWA. 33 U.S.C. § 1362(7), defines "navigable wa'e"" as "warers ofthe 

United States." 40 C. F.R. § 122.2 defines ''waters of the United States" to include waters that 

are currently used, were used in the past, or may be susceptible to use in interstate or fore ign 

commerce; all interstate waters; and tributaries to those waters. 

3.3. Seclion 502(6) of the CWA. 33 U.S.C. § 1362(6). defines "pollu.anl",o include. 

infer alia, dredged spo il, rock, sand, biological material s, and industrial waste . 

3.4. Sec.ion 309(gX I) of 'he CWA. 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)( I). au.honlcs EPA '0 assess 

administrative penalties against any person who has violated Section 301 of the CWA. 33 U.S .C. 

§ 13 1 I, or a condition of an NPDES permit issued pursuant to Secl ion 402 of the CWA, 33 

U.S.C. § 1342. 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER - 2 U.S. Envlroo mto tal Protection AgeDcy 
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3.5. Sterling Mining Company is a "person" as"defined under Section 502(5) of the 

CWA, 33 U.s.C. § 1362(5), 

3.6. At all times relevant to this CAFO, ReSpOndent was the owner and/or operator of 

the Sunshine Mine and Mill ("Facility"). The Facility is a si lver mine located near Kellogg, 

Idaho. 

3.7. The receiving waters for discharges of pollutants from the Facility are the South 

Fork Coeur d'Alene River ("River") and Big Creek. The River and Big Creek are "navigable 

waters" as defined in Section 502(7) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. § 1362(7), and are ''waters of the 

United States" as defined in 40 C.F.R. § 122.2. 

Discbare:e Without an NPDES Permit 

3.8. On or aboul OClober 9,2008, Respondent di scharged process waste water and 

backfi ll sand from a decant line near two sand storage tanks into Big Creek. 

3.9. The decant line that conveyed the discharge to Big Creek constitutes a "point 

source" within the meaning of Section 502(14) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § J362( 14), and 40 

CTR. § 122.2, 

3. 10. By discharging the process wastewater into waters oflhe United Siales, 

Respondent engaged in the "discharge of pollutants" from a point source within the meaning of 

Sections 30 I (a) and 502(12) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311 (a) and 1362( 12). 

3.11. The discharge of process wastewater was nol authorized by an NPDES permit 

issued pursuant to Section 402 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342. Therefore, Respondent violated 

Section 301 (a) of the CWA, 33 U.S,C. § 13 11 (a). 

3. 12. Pu",uantto Section 309(g) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. § 1319(g), ,nd 40 C.F.R. Pan 

19, Respondent is liable for civi I penalties not to exceed $11 ,000 per day for each day during 

which the violation continues, up to a ma.x imum amount ofS 177,500. 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINA L ORDER - 3 U.S. Environmeotal ProtKtJon Agency 
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B. NPDES Permit Violations 

3. 13. The Facility is aUlhorized to di scharge mine dra inage, tailings process wastewater 

sta nn waler, cooling water, and sanilary wastewater ITom Outfa ll 00 1 into the Sou th Fork Coeur 

d'Alene River (" Ri ver") pursuant to the conditions and limitations set forth in NPDES Penn it 

No. ID-000006-0. 

3. 14. Outfa ll 00 1 is a "point source" within the meaning of 40 C.F. R. § 122.2. 

3. 15. Part I.A. I of the Penni! establishes effiuent limits for discharges from Outfa ll 

00 I. These effiuent limits include, but are not limited to, manganese, tota l suspended solids 

("TSS"l, and iron. 

3.16. When a pennittee exceeds a monthly average effluent limit, the permittee is 

deemed to be in violation of the effluent limits each ofthe 'tfays of the month in which the 

violat ion occurred. When a permittee exceeds a maximum daily effluent limit, the excecdance is 

counted as one violation. 

3.17. In April 2007, Respondent discharged effluent from Outfall 001 a total of six 

days. In November 2007, Respondent discharged effiuent from Outfall OQ.I a total of sixteen 

days. In December 2007, Respondent discharged effluent from Outfall 00 I a total of sixteen 

days. In January 2008, Respondent discharged emuent from Outfall 00 1 a total of six days. 

3.18. Between April 2007 and September 2008, the Facility had 82 violations of the 

Permit. The violations are set forth in Paragraphs 3.19-3,23, below. 

3. 19. Section I.A.I of the Permit contains a mont~Jy average concentration effluent 

limi t for manganese o rO ,503 mgll at Outfall 001. Berween April 2007 and September 2008, 

Respondent violated the monthly average concentration emuenl limit for manganese at Outfall 

00 I fo r a tota l of four months. The vio lations are as fo llows: 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER· 4 U.S. Ellvlrllllml!lltnl PmlKtlon Agency 
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< April 2007 6 
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""" 
NoYember 2007 16 ,
De«mber 2007 
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<January 2008 < 
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3.2Q, Section i A.l of the Penni( contains a monthly average mass effiue·nt limit for 

manganese of 1L7 Jb/day at Outfali 001. Between April 2007 and September 2008, Respondent 

violated the monthly average mass effluent limlr for manganese at Outfall 001 to April 2007, 

constituting six violAtions. 

3.21. Se~:t!on LA of the Permit contains a daily m,tXimum concentration effiuenl limit 

for manganese of 0.866 mg/L at Outfall 00 l. Between April 2007 and September 2008, 

Respondent vlolat¢d the daily maximum concentration emuent limit for manganese at Outfall 

00 I for a total of27 days, constituting 27 violations. The violations are as follows: 

,November 5, 2007 

M<1Iltit<><VlolmIQIT « 

November 3< 2007 

November 4, 2007 , 1 , 
, 

, 
, 

N!.llllbw0iVlC 
1 

, 
, 

November 6, 2007 

November 8, 2007 
-~N~ovember 9, 2007 

November 19, 2007 

November21,2007 

l'ovember 27,2007 I 

, 
~ 

November 28,2007 I, 
I~ December 4, ZOG7 

December 6, 2007 I 
:: December 1(l, 2007 I 

wwj«""" 
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December l7, 2007 1 

December 18,2007 1 


December 19, 2007 1 

~~~~=~--~,,~-~~

December 20, 2007 1 

December 26, 2007 I 

December 27, 2007 1 


December 28, 2007 1 


January 4, 2008 1 

"15,2008 I 

JanuilIy 6, 2008 I 

JImWll'Y 7, 2008 I 

JanuilIy B, 2008 I 

January 9, 2008 I 

3:22. Section LA.l ofthe Pennit contalns a daily maximum concentration effiuent limit 

for TSS of 31.6 mgIL at Outfall 001, Beween Aprll 2007 and September 2008, Respondent 

vIolated the daily maximum concentration effluent limil for TSS at Outfall 001 for a total of four 

days, constituting four violations. The viCllations are as follows: 

,, Month ofVl,,101lm> Number .fVkliol;il)n.
,.-".,.

Ko\'cmber 19,2007 1 
..-..-.

December Jl,2oo7 , 1 
C~"······~·'"··········JanWll'Y 5, '2008 +, I ...... :2008 I ..................- ....._.... 

; Scp'cm ber 9, I 

21 
3.23, Section I A.I of the Permit cotttains a daily rnax:imum concenlrntioo effluent limit 

22 
for iron of2 mg/I at Outfall OOt. Between April 2007 and September 2008, Respondent Violated 

23 
the daily maximum concentration effluent limit for iron at Outfall OOl on November 19, 2007, 

24 
constituting one violatmn, 

25 
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3.24. Pu"uant to Section 309<&)(2)(B) of the CWA, 33 U.S .C. § 1319 (g)(2)(B) and 40 

C.F.R. Part 19, Respondent is liable for civil penalties not to exceed $11,000 per day for each 

day during which the violations alleged above continued, up to a maxi mum 0[$177,500. 

IV. CONSENT AGREEMENT 

4.\. Respondent stipulates that EPA has jurisdiction over the subject matter alleged 

herein. 

4.2. As required under Section 309(g)(3) of the CWA, 33 U.S .C. § 1319(g)(3), EPA 

has taken into account the narure, circumstances, extent, and grav ity of the alleged violations as 

well as Respondent' s economic benefit o f noncompliance, ability to pay, and other relevant 

factors. After considering all of these factors, EPA has determined and Respondent agrees that 

an appropriate penalty to settle this action is in the amountof$SO,OOO. 

4.3. Respondent neither admits nor denies the speci fic factual allegations contained in 

Part III of this CAFO. 

4.4. Respondent consents to issuance of the Fina l Order set fonh in Pan V, below, and 

agrees to pay the total civil penalty set forth in Paragraph 4.2, above, withi n 30 days of the 

effective date of the Final Order. 

4.5. EPA acknowledges that Respondent is presently a debtor~i n~possess ion in a 

Chapter I I bankruptcy case al 09~20178-TLM, United States Bankrup!cy Coun, District of 

Idaho. Payment of the agreed civil penalty in Paragraph 4.2 above pursuant to the tenns of this 

Consent Agreement is express ly cond itioned on U.S . Bankruptcy Co un approval. Approval of 

such payment, among other matters, is presently before the Court through Sterling's Motion for 

Sterling to Assume Sunshine Lease Pursuant to 11 U.S.C. §365(a) and to Cure Defaults [Docket 

#31] and final Molion for Approval ofPost~Peliti on Financing Agreement [Docket #143]. By 

entering into this CAFO, Respondent is obligated to use its best efforts to seek U.S. Bankruptcy 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AN D FINAL ORDER - 7 U.S. Envir-onmenlal Protection Agency 
DOCKET NO. CWA-IO-2009-0 197 1200 Sh:lb Avenue, Suile 900 

SU llie., Washing10n 98101 
(206) 553-1037 
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Court approval for payment of the agreea 'civil penalty in Paragraph 4 .2. The Parties' agreement 

in this CAfO notwithstanding, EPA may submit a proof of claim based on the allegations in Part 

III of this CAFO in the above·referenced bankruptcy case for an amount in ex:cess of the amount 

specified in Paragraph 4.2. The Court's approval o f this CAFO and EPA 's receipt of the 

payment spec ified in Paragraph 4.4 shall extinguish any other claims made by EPA based on the 

allegations in Part lU of this CAFO. 

4.6. Payment under this CAFO shall be made by cashier' s check or certified check, 

payable to the order of "Treasurer, United Slates of America" and delivered to the following 

address: 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Region )0 .. 
Fines and Penallies 

Cincinnati Finance Center 

PO Box 979077 

SI. Louis, M063197-9000 


Respondent shall note on the check (he ti tle and docket number of thi s action. 

4.7. Respondent shall serve photocopies oflhe checks describe~ in Paragraph 4.6, 

above, on the Regional Hearing Clerk and the EPA Region 10 Office of Compliance and 

Enforcement at the following addresses: 

Regional Hearing C lerk 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

Region 10 

1200 Sixth A venue, Suite 900, ORC- IS8 

Seattle, WA 98 10 1 


U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 10 

Office ofCompiiance and Enrorcement 

Attn: Eva DeMaria 

1200 Sixth A venue, Suite 900, OCE-I )) 

Seattle, WA 98101 
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4.8. If Respondent fails to pay'the penalty assessed by this CAFO in full by the due 

date set forth in Paragraph 4.4. above, the entire unpaid balance of penalty and accrued interest 

shall become immediately due and owing. TfRcspondent fails to pay (he penalty assessed, 

Respondent may be subject to a civil actlon to collect the assessed penalty under the CWA, 

together with interest, fees, costs, and additional penalties described below. In any collection 

action, the validity, amount, and appropriateness of the penalty amount shall not be subject to 

review. 

4.9. If Respondent fails to pay any portion of the penalty assessed by this CAFO in 

full by the due date set forth in Paragraph 4.4, above, Respondent shall be responsible for 

payment of the amounts described below: 

4.9.1. Interest. Pursuant to Section 309(g)~9) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. 

§ l319(g)(9), any unpaid portion of the assessed penalty shall bear interest at a rate 

established by the Secretary of Treasury pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717(a)(I) from the 

effective date of the Final Order set forth in Part V below, provided, however, that no 

interest shall be payable on any portion of the assessed penalty that. is paid within thirty 

days of the effective date of the Final Order. 

4.9.2. Attorneys Fees, Collection Costs, Nonpayment Penalty. Pursuant to 

Section 309(g)(9) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. § 13l9(g)(9), if Respondent failsto pay on a 

timely basis the amount of the penalty set forth in Paragraph 4,2, above, Respondent shaH 

pay (in addition to any assessed penalty and interest) attorneys fees and costs for 

collection proceedings and a quarterly nonpayment penalty for each quarter during which 

such failure to pay persists. Such nonpayment penalty shaH be in an amount equal to 

twenty percent of the aggregate amount of Respondent's penalties and nonpayment 

penalties that are unpaid as of the beginning ofsuch quarter. 

CONSENT AGREErvlENT AND FfNAL ORDER - 9 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
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4.10. The penalty described in' Paragraph 4.2, aoo'o/e. including any additional costs 

incurred under Paragraph 4.9, above, represents an administrative civil penalty assessed by EPA 

and shall nol be deductible for purposes of federal taxes. 

4.11. The undersigned representative of Respondent certi ties that he or she is fully 

authorized to enter into the terms and conditions of this CAFO and to bind Respondent to this 

dacumen1. 

4.12. Except as described in Subparagraph 4.9.2, above, each party shall bear its own 

costs in bringing or defending this action. 

4.13. Respondent expressly waives any rights to contest the allegations and waives any 

right to appeal the Final Order set forth in Part V, below. 

< 
4.14. The provisions of this CAFO shall bind Respondent and its agents, servants, 

employees, successors, and assigns. 

4.15. The above provisions are STIPULATED AND AGREED upon by Respondent 

and EPA. 

DATED: STERLING MlNTNG COMPANY: 

ir1 ~~,, :lOtJ'l !?T#.~~ 

S;gnature •r' t f d __ 

Print Name: ~'" A. Y"In 1i!lQ~.5 


T;tle:~~~ 
DATED: AGENCY : 

!I~i9~ t9 eel( 
i, Director 

Office ofComp lance and Enforcement 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER· 10 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
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V. FINAL OR))ER 

5.1 The terms oftne foregoing Consent Agreement are hereby ratified and 

lricorporated by reference into this Final Order. Respondent is hereby ord.ered 10 comply with 

Ihe foregoing terms of the settlement 

5,2, This CAFO constitutes a settlement by EPA of all claims fOf civil penalties 

pursuant to the CWA for the violations alleged in Part 1lI, above. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. 

§ 22.31(a), nothing in this CAFO shall affect the right of EPA or the United States to pursue 

appropriate injunctive or other equitable reliefor criminal sancttons for any violations of law. 

This CAPO does not waive, extinguish, or othervvlse affect Respondent's obligations to comply 

with aU applicable provisions of the CWA, applicable CWA regulations, and/or any permits 

issued thereunder, 

5.3. In accordance with Section 309(g)( I) oflhc CWA, 33 U.S.C. § J3 19(9)(I), 31ld 

40 CF.R, § 22,38(b), the Idaho Department of EnvIron me nUll Quality has been given the 

opportunity to consult with EPA fe,garding the assessment of the administrative civil penalty 

i against Respondent. 

5.4. Pursuant to Section 309(g)(4)(A) oftne CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1 319(g)(4)(A), EPA 

bas published public notice of Its inrent to assess an administrative penalty against Respondent 

and has invited public comment In accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.45. More than forty days 

have eiapsed since the issuance of this: publk notice. and EPA has received no petition to set 

aside the Consent Agreement contained herein. 
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This Final Order shall become effective upon filing. 

SO ORDERED Ihis ~ay of S"A6__,,2009, 

THOMAS .M. J 
Regional Judicial 
V.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

Region 10 
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CERTIFlC<ATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned certifies that the original of the attached CONSENT AGREEMENT 
AND FINAL ORDER in In the Matter of: Sterling Mining Company, DOCKET NO<: 
CWA-IO-2009-0197 was filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk on September 16,2009< 

On September l6, 2009 the undersigned certifies that a true and correct copy of the 
document was delivered to: 

Jennifer Byrne, Esquire 

US Environmental Projection Agency 

1200 Sixth Avenue, ORC-IS8 

Suite 900 

Seattle, WA 9810 I 


Further, the undersigned certifies that a true and cerrect cdpy of the: aforementioned 
document was placed in the Umted States mail certifiedlretum receipt on September 16, 2009, to: 

Sterling Mining Company 

Sunshine Mine and Mill 

PD. Box 1I7 

Kellogg< 10 83837 


DATED this 16"dayofSeptember2009< 


